

Getting started

701P42347 October, 2004



Prepared by: Xerox Corporation Global Knowledge and Language Services 800 Phillips Road, Bldg. 0845-17S Webster, New York 14580-9791 USA

©2004 by Xerox Corporation. All rights reserved.

Copyright protection claimed includes all forms and matters of copyrightable material and information now allowed by statutory judicial law or hereinafter granted, including without limitation, material generated from the software programs which are displayed on the screen such as icons, screen displays, looks, etc.

Printed in the United States of America.

XEROX® and all Xerox product names mentioned in this publication are trademarks of XEROX CORPORATION. Other company trademarks are also acknowledged.

Changes are periodically made to this document. Changes, technical inaccuracies, and typographic errors will be corrected in subsequent editions

Table of contents

1.	Overview	1
	User documentation Printing the user guides	
2.	DocuSP 4.1 New Features All DocuSP - Based Products	1 1
	DocuColor printer specific changes	9
3.	DocuSP 4.1 Software Release Information	1
	Notes and Caveats	1
4.	Tools and Utilities	1
	Ability to Bind 128 Pages	1
	Set Retain PDL	1
	Reset the Xrite Spectrophotometer	2
5 .	Adobe Acrobat Reader	1
٥.	For Windows and Macintosh	1
	For Solaris	
	i di ddiaid	

1. Overview

Your Document Services Platform (DocuSP) product has just been installed or upgraded. This document will familiarize you with the functions and new features available with this system.

User documentation

The user documentation for your DocuSP-based products consists of the following:

- Getting Started: The Getting Started manual is this document, which is delivered as part of the user guide kit. This document explains the product for new customers, and details the new features and feature changes in the DocuSP software for current customers. It also lists the notes and caveats for working with the DocuSP software, and gives directions on how to access and print the user guides.
- ◆ User documentation on CD ROM: The CD ROM user guides contain the following:
 - The Adobe Acrobat Reader executable for Windows, Macintosh, and Solaris platforms. By loading the Acrobat Reader, you can access and view the user guides delivered in Adobe Acrobat PDF format. Instructions for loading the Acrobat Reader software are in Chapter 5 of this document. Procedures for printing the user guides from the CD ROM are located in the Printing the User Guides section, which follows this one.
 - A folder containing the DocuSP user guides. These guides are designed to be used with the DocuSP controller regardless of the attached printer. The DocuSP controller user guides consist of:
 - System Guide (system.pdf): Contains system level information covering security, accounting, backup and restore procedures.
 - Color Management Guide (colormgt.pdf): Contains information for the DocuSP user to reference on the DocuSP controller's color workflow. This guide is only applicable for the DocuColor 2045/2060/5252/6060/8000.
 - Getting Ready for the DocuSP Installation (getready.pdf): Contains installation worksheets to be filled in by the customer working with a Xerox representative in

- preparation for the DocuSP software installation. The PDF version provided on the CD allows the DocuSP user to print additional copies of this document as necessary.
- Using the Ip utilities for Solaris (using Ip.pdf): Contains the syntax and commands for using the Unix Ip print command to submit jobs to the DocuSP controller.
- Using the Ipr utilities for DOS and UNIX (using Ipr.pdf):
 Contains the syntax and commands for using the command line Ipr from either UNIX or DOS to submit jobs to the DocuSP controller.
- Product specific folder(s): One or more product specific folders are available on the user guide CD ROM. The folders contain documents such as the printer Operator Guide, Installation Planning Guides for electrical and space requirements, plus additional documents as necessary for the smooth operation of your printer. Access the folder that matches the printer type you are using.
- DocuSP On-line Help: The DocuSP software contains an online Help system accessed from the various Help buttons and pull-down menus on the DocuSP interface. In addition, a PDF version of the content of the on-line Help is available on the DocuSP by accessing the Help pull-down menu on the DocuSP user interface (UI). To print on-line:
 - 1. On the DocuSP UI, select the Help pull-down menu and select Print Help Documentation.
 - 2. Select a queue from the pull-down menu, and select OK.
 - 3. Send the documentation to a hold queue in order to program the job properties, or send the job to a queue with the following job properties set as overrides:
 - o Sides imaged = 2-sided
 - o Finishing = none
 - o Paper stock = $8 \frac{1}{2} \times 11$ or A4; drilled if the document is to be placed in a binder.
 - NOTE: The Help documentation is over 200 pages.
 - 4. In Job Manager, locate the job and program the job properties. Then, release the job to print.

Printing the user guides

Use the procedure below to print the user guides located on the User Guides CD ROM.

- Be sure that Adobe Acrobat Reader, Version 4 or later, is loaded on your personal computer. It is also <u>strongly</u> recommended that the Xerox custom print driver for your printer be installed on the personal computer. Refer to Chapter 5 of this document for instructions on loading the Adobe Acrobat Reader from the User Guides CD ROM.
- 2. Place the User Guides CD ROM in the CD ROM driver of the computer.
- 3. Open the CD ROM and any required folders. Locate the document you wish to print.
- 4. Using the Adobe Acrobat Reader, you can view the document, print the entire document, or print selected pages of the document.
- 5. Select File, Print and select the printer to which the document is to be sent for printing. You can program the job properties at either the personal computer or at the DocuSP controller.

2. DocuSP 4.1 New Features

This chapter describes the features and functions now available in the DocuSP Version 4.10.xx software.

All DocuSP - Based Products

User interface enhancements

The DocuSP User Interface has been updated to allow users quicker access to features and functions. In addition, modifications have been made to allow more room on the user interface for the enhanced feature set each DocuSP release brings to the customer environment.

Some highlights include:

- The features are now split into Services and Managers. Depending upon the product, Services and Managers may be different:
- Reprint Manager is now the Print Service
- ♦ Managers are Job, Queue, Print, and possibly Color
- Administration activities are now located under the Administration pull-down menu at the top of the UI.
- Accelerator icons have been added to each screen to allow faster access to the basic feature set. Rolling the cursor over each icon displays the feature the icon represents.
- Feature Access Buttons, or FABs, have been added. The FABs provide access to additional functions with a tab, and display a summary of the settings made within each FAB.

Keyboard shortcuts

An extensive set of keyboard shortcuts has been enabled on the DocuSP controller. These shortcuts are documented in the DocuSP help.

First In/First Out and Resource Based Scheduling

A System Preference option has been added to allow a customer to set the site level workflow to either First job In, First Out (FIFO) or Resource Based Scheduling.

This preference combines the command line tool setFifoMode and the preference to Fault Ineligible jobs.

- FIFO forces jobs to print in first in, first out order without regard to available paper stocks or other necessary resources. Jobs requiring unavailable resources fault and must be cleared before printing can resume.
- Resource Based Scheduling places jobs with available resources into the print stream. Jobs requiring resources not available are set to ineligible awaiting resource availability.

New layout features

Additional templates and more control over the imposition process have been added to the Layout feature in DocuSP 4.1.

- ◆ 1-up imposition provides the ability to impose an image, 1-up, centered on the output. Additional templates include 9-up, none, 2-up flip right, and 6-up.
- Outside margin provides the ability to specify the amount of white space around the outside of the output sheet.
- Bleed provides the ability to specific the existence of an image beyond the trim boundary of the page to avoid unwanted white edges.
- Trim size provides the ability to set the size of the finished document after folding and trimming in relation to the original document size.
- Remove image bleed for signature layouts, such as saddle stitch or perfect booklet, provides the ability to remove any image bleed from the center fold line of the output when Bleed is specified.
- Cut marks now appear at the trim edges for documents containing bleed. Also, cut marks can be specified to appear on the front, back, or both sides of the output.
- Within the Job Manager, Queue Manager, and Print (reprint) Service, custom layout templates can now be created and saved with a user-defined name. The custom templates appear on the layout style pull-down menu in the layout FAB. The ability to edit or delete any user-defined templates is also available.

Queue enhancements

Many site settings are now available on a queue level to allow increased flexibility to the printing workflow. For example, PostScript options, PCL options (such as paper sources and fonts), and halftone selections.

Network and gateway enhancements

The DocuSP network and gateway configuration setup has been updated to reflect protocol changes, and to allow ease and flexibility for the system administrator in setting the gateway configuration.

The site or system administrator can now set or change the network settings using the DocuSP user interface. In addition, many settings do not require a reboot of the DocuSP controller.

- A Network Configuration screen is now available under the Setup pull-down menu. The following settings can be made on the screen:
- ◆ The ability to change the hostname, IP address, subnet masks, etc.
- ◆ The DocuSP can now be configured for DHCP with a dynamic IP address.
- The Ethernet speeds can be manually changed through the Network Configuration screen. The default setting is "automatic", which allows the software to automatically detect the highest speed available. In addition, the system administrator can manually change the speed as necessary.
- The system administrator can select the NIS/NIS+ options through the DocuSP Network Configuration screen.
- DocuSP supports WINS, Windows Internet Name Service, which allows DocuSP network integration in older Windows environments. The Network Configuration screen allows the system administrator to enable or disable the protocol and enter the primary WINS server name.
- ◆ The DocuSP Network Configuration provides a wizard to allow the system administrator to add Active Directory Services (ADS) domains for quick integration of the DocuSP into Windows NT ADS networks.
- The Gateways screen has the following additions or enhancements:
- ◆ The gateway protocols can now be enabled or disabled individually.
- Each gateway protocol can be set for a default gueue.

- ◆ The LPD (line printer daemon) protocol can now be set using the DocuSP interface. The LPD can be enabled or disabled, set with a default queue, and have the port setting changed.
- The NetWare Queue Server tab now contains the ability to enable or disable the gateway, and to set the preferred server through the interface rather than through a command line utility.
- The NetWare tab now has an option to allow automatic configuration of the NetWare gateway. Manual setup of the gateway is still available.
- SSL/TLS, Web Server

Administration Pages

The control of the Administration Pages, the Banner and Error pages, has moved from a site selection in the Printer menu to being available at the queue and job level.

- Banner pages can now be enabled or disabled on a job and queue basis.
- Error pages can now be enabled or disabled on a queue basis.

The page settings, such as stock, are available as a site-wide selection from the Printer, Switches menu option. The Administration Page Settings displays the current properties, and allows for setting of the stock, site message, and sender name properties.

Background Forms

NOTE: Background forms are not supported on the DocuColor iGen3 and DocuColor 2045, 2060, 5252, 6060, and 8000 at this time.

A Background Form is a preprinted insert, or one or more pages on which individual pages of a print job is overlaid. You can merge a specified background form with the variable data of the foreground job via job submission and queue property settings. The benefit of using background forms is that only the variable data needs to be submitted to the controller, and processing time should be faster. A background form is saved to the system as a single-page TIFF.

Complex documents that are needed as forms can be decomposed once and stored as forms on DocuSP. When a form is referenced by a job, the form pages are merged with the pages of the job. The job is submitted to the DocuSP with a disposition of Save Form.

Background forms can be accessed through the queue properties or job properties for merging with a job.

The directory location for saved background forms is set using Setup, System Preferences, Save tab. The saved background forms can be managed using the Background Forms Manager under Administration. The Background Forms Manager displays the name, size, pages, and creation date of each form, and allows the forms to be sampled, imported, exported, and deleted.

Backup and Restore

Starting with DocuSP 4.1, a built-in backup and restore feature is accessible from the GUI and DSPERU on diskette is no longer provided.

A user interface for Backup and Restore is available under the System pull-down menu. The following options are available:

- Backup System: backs up the entire system to provide the ability to restore the system in the event of a catastrophic software or hard disk failure.
- Backup Configuration: allows for the selection of backing up all configuration files, or selection of items such as queues, color profiles, user TRCs, stock database, LCDS resources, PostScript/PCL/TIFF settings, UNIX accounts and groups, basic network information, and VIPP settings.
- Restore Configuration: allows for the restoration of saved configuration settings.

Saving stock and tray mappings

DocuSP 4.1 now provides the ability to save the current paper tray programming to a file and recall that file for later use. The saved tray mappings may also be copied to another DocuSP-based system using the DocuSP Backup and Restore functionality.

For example, if a job or series of jobs that are often run have a specific paper tray programming, the mapping can be saved and recalled for faster setup for printing of the job.

This functionality is not available on the DocuColor iGen3.

Security updates

A number of security features have been added to the DocuSP software.

 The system administrator now has the ability to enable or disable specific IP addresses and subnet masks access to the system. The access includes Ipr, IPP, HTTP, SMB printing, TCP printing, and FTP connections. The system administrator can set the Security Profiles to control access to the system for individuals belonging to any one of three main user account groups: System Administrator (sa), Machine Operator (if one is assigned), or User (Walk-up or Trusted).

Four security profiles are supplied when the software is installed. These security profiles provide varying levels of secure access to the system, and can be used to set the security access of individuals or groups to the DocuSP controller.

 The DocuSP software now provides Secure Socket Layer, SSL/TLS, security for the DocuSP controller. The Secure Socket Layer provides a certificate based secure mode for XDS, XDS+, FFPM, and HTTP browser submissions.

Billing

The Xerox Billing window has been enhanced to assist the customer in reporting billing information.

- ◆ The time and date of the last meter read has been added to the display.
- The following billing report options are now retained between restarts of the DocuSP software. These items only need to be entered once when first printing the billing report, and are retained for future prints.
 - The queue name for printing the billing report
 - The customer ID (customer name)
 - The machine ID (printer serial number)

Simultaneous multiple job submission

Reprint Manager now supports the ability to select multiple jobs for submission to print, print now, or proof. This feature uses the Shift and CTRL keys on the keyboard to select a range or individual collection of files. All of the selected files are submitted to a single queue.

Note that Reprint Manager has been renamed to Print Service.

Saving jobs

Saved jobs may now be saved with the same name as previously saved jobs. An option in System Preferences has been added to allow the customer to control the workflow and behavior of saved jobs.

The options to Overwrite a Saved Job are:

 New version saves the job with the same name but adds a version number to the filename.

- Overwrite job replaces the existing job with the new saved job of the same name.
- Fault the job aborts the save attempt with a message that the job already exists. A save of the new job requires entering a new job name.

Note that for the first two options, no warning prompt is displayed when the system saves the new job. In addition, there is no provision for recovering an overwritten job.

For this release, this functionality only applies to jobs saved in the local job repository on the DocuSP controller. This feature does not apply to jobs saved on removable media, such as a CD, or on a network drive.

VIPP and VPM

- The VIPP Project Manager, VPM, interface is now part of the DocuSP interface, and can be accessed under the Administration pull-down menu. VPM allows for the management of VIPP and PPML resources. VPM is loaded as part of the standard DocuSP installation.
- IPP Clients, such as XDS Plus or the FreeFlow Print Manager, can now retrieve the VIPP Initialization Files through the IPP Gateway from the DocuSP system. IPP Clients can use the supported initialization files to submit a print request to the DocuSP using the IPP Gateway.

VIPP Initialization files must be preloaded on the DocuSP controller in the /var/spool/XRXnps/vipp directory. Refer to the VIPP 5.1 customer documentation for more information.

PDF Composite cache optimization

In addition to the VIPP and PostScript workflow composite cache architecture, PDF forms and images are now automatically cached. Any PDF files that use traditional Adobe 6.0 forms will be cached. Processing speed increases may be experienced for many VI and form-based PDF workflows.

PCL media selection

PCL Media Selection allows specification of tray to media mapping through the XPIF job ticket or IPP attributes for PCL jobs. This feature enables support for overriding the PCL Paper Source selected in the gueue by the XPIF ticket or IPP attributes.

Tape client page boundary recovery

The DocuSP Tape Client is now able to resume printing job data for a LCDS offline tape job from the point where the data transfer was interrupted, possibly due to a DocuSP restart or error.

This feature allows the restart of a printing job from the point where the job halted, as opposed to starting from the beginning of the job as in previous releases of the Tape Client.

This feature only applies to streaming jobs.

Adobe version update

DocuSP 4.1 now comes with an upgrade in the Adobe core interpreter to version 3016.

Drivers and document submission software

The software package called Xerox Production Print Services, XPPS, has been retired.

New drivers have been developed to support all of the current and new DocuSP-based printers.

The document submission software XDS Plus is now being delivered as part of the FreeFlow Print Manager software.

DocuColor printer specific changes

The following are new features specific to the DocuColor iGen3, and the DocuColor 2045, 2060, 5252, 6060, and 8000 printers.

New printer

This release of DocuSP introduces a new DocuColor printer, the DocuColor 8000. The DocuColor 8000 is an 80 page per minute full color printer.

Color image quality enhancements

SWOP Plus allows the user to take advantage of the popular SWOP look but leverages the digital press gamut.

Maximum grey color removal reduces the level of C, M, and Y to produce more black (K) replacement. While the overall color can be impacted, the benefit in reduced color toner usage can be applied in less critical color applications.

Source Profile override

Source profile overrides are now available as user selections from the client job submission applications and at the DocuSP on a page, job, and queue level. The DocuSP job attribute precedence model applies to this override option.

Page Parallel RIP enhancements

This release of the DocuSP software automatically restricts the interface for the queue property option settings to restrict the ability to set VI object cache and parallel RIP at the same time.

- Enable/disable parallel RIP now enables or disables all parallel RIP behaviors. Previous releases required the user to disable the parallel RIP capability by manually creating an unprotected queue.
- If VI object cache is enabled, parallel RIP is automatically disabled. If parallel RIP is enabled, VI cache is automatically disabled.

This behavior was initially available in DocuSP patch version 3.8.18 or higher.

GetTIFF

The GetTIFF command allows the DocuSP color printers to access the GetTIFF and GetForm capability provided to the DocuSP black and white printers.

GetTIFF is a macro that, when inserted into a PostScript file, retrieves a TIFF file from the server or a remote location. GetTIFF provides the custom PostScript operators GetForm and GetTiff to document creators using DocuSP-based printers.

3. DocuSP 4.1 Software Release Information

This chapter describes the DocuSP 4.1 software. Please read the information thoroughly before using the system.

Notes and Caveats

The sections in this chapter cover known issues with the DocuSP 4.1 software and supporting applications.

DocuSP Controller

The following table details the caveats for the DocuSP 4.1 software and indicates which, or all, printer products to which the caveat applies.

These caveats are planned to be fixed in a future release of the DocuSP software. If you encounter one of these caveats that impact your print production, contact your Xerox support representative.

Caveat	Applicable printer product
Jobs with a Layout custom template and 1 Up may complete with errors.	DocuColor 8000
Pantone licensed 3.0 color tables are not currently available.	DocuColor 8000
If a PDF job uses the useExecForm command, disable Optimized PDF in order to print the file.	All
Do not attempt to send a job to a Streaming Queue that is set to Do Not Accept Jobs. A socket fault occurs that cannot be reset.	All
The DocuSP user interface does not allow the programming of a Layout Trim Size.	All
IPDS is not currently available.	All
TIFF files referenced from a PPML job may not print. Submit the TIFF file directly to the TIFF decomposer.	All
GetTiff does not process Adobe PhotoShop TIFF files with JPEG compression.	All
Some optimized PostScript jobs do not print. Disable the PostScript optimization.	All

Caveat	Applicable printer product
Some PDF files may not print with PPR enabled. Disable PPR.	All
Side 2 of a landscape PCL jobs prints in the wrong orientation.	All
Some files may not be restored after a Configuration Restore.	All
Feature licenses are not always accurately reflected on the Feature License dialog.	All
A job submitted through the lpr gateway with image shifts on exception pages uses values from the job level image shift instead. Program the image shift values for the exception pages in Job Properties.	All
Using a streaming queue is not recommended. Jobs hang with a status of "Waiting for RIP."	DocuColor 2045/2060/6060/5252
An FRF saved job displays incorrectly in the viewer, but prints correctly.	DocuColor 2045/2060/6060/5252 DocuColor iGen3
Jobs print in serial mode when the administration pages and Page Parallel RIP are enabled. In order for jobs to print in parallel mode, disable the administration (banner and error) pages.	DocuColor iGen3 DocuColor 2045/2060/6060/5252 DocuPrint CF
The Reposition Output display only shows the end of the job and does not show the end of the set.	DocuTech/DocuPrint 75/90 DocuPrint 1xx EPS
The XJDC compiler displays messages that conflict with the operation of the printer when the STAPLE=YES command is given for a job. On a DP 75/90, STAPLE=YES only allows 1 to N and Face down (NTO1=NO, FACEUP=NO) printing.	DocuTech/DocuPrint 75/90 DocuPrint 75 MX
Do not attempt to program a paper tray that contains ordered stock and is currently being used by a printing job.	DocuTech/DocuPrint 75/90 DocuPrint 75 MX
External finishing cannot be selected at the client using the IPP or HTTP gateways. Submit the job to the printer without any finishing, and select the external finisher at the DocuSP.	DocuPrint 1xx EPS DocuTech 61xx

DocuJob Converter

Following are notes for the DocuJob Converter.

- The DocuJob Converter software must be at least Version 2.1.04. This version corrects a timing problem that resulted in jobs being lost at the controller.
- Version 2.2 of the DocuJob Converter software, which runs under Solaris 2.6 on a Sun Ultra 60 platform, is available.

VIPP Interpreter

Please reference the VIPP documentation for additional information pertaining to VIPP.

FreeFlow Prepress Suite

Please reference the FreeFlow Prepress Suite Customer Software Release Supplement for additional information.

Clients

With this release, the Xerox Production Print Services software has been retired, and replaced with a set of drivers and the FreeFlow Print Manager software.

Refer to the documentation that is provided with the drivers and FreeFlow Print Manager software kits for more information.

4. Tools and Utilities

This chapter includes the various software tools and utilities used with the DocuSP software.

Ability to Bind 128 Pages

A UNIX command line utility included to allow the ability to bind more than 125 sheets of paper for the DocuTech 61xx printers only.

Changing the Binding Limit

Perform the following steps to modify the number of pages that can be bound from 125 to 128.

- 1. In the background, right-click to open the menu. Open a terminal window.
- 2. Login as root user.
- 3. Type: /opt/XRXnps/bin/setBind128 -f # and press <Enter>, where # equals 1 to set the limit for bind jobs to 128 and # equals 0 to set the limit for bind jobs to 125.
- 4. Close the terminal window. Restart the DocuSP software.

Set Retain PDL

- ◆ The Set Retain PDL feature on the DocuSP is limited to retain only 50 completed jobs for future printing. Depending on the size of retained jobs and the size of the internal hard drives; a lower value may be more appropriate for some customers.
- ◆ A UNIX utility named setretainPDL has been added to the DocuSP to allow the user to specify the number of jobs to be retained within a range of 1 to 100.
- Customers who use the Set Retain PDL feature must be aware that monitoring the disk capacity is the responsibility of the enduser. The DocuSP does not have a process for indicating when the disk is full. Increasing the number of retained jobs should only be done if the customer is confident that this will not fill the controller hard drive. Approaching disk capacity can prevent job transmission or otherwise impact system behavior.

Changing the Retain PDL Setting

Perform the following steps to modify the number of PDLs that can be retained on the DocuSP.

- 1. On the DocuSP interface, select Setup and System Preferences. Select the Job Policy tab.
- 2. Ensure that the setting for Retain PDL files of last 50 jobs is set as enabled.
- 3. Select [OK]. Do not restart the system if you are prompted to do so.
- 4. In the background, right-click to open the menu. Open a terminal window.
- 5. Login as root user.
- 6. Type: /opt/XRXnps/bin/setretainPDL # and press <Enter>, where # is a number between 1 and 100. A value of 0 maintains the current setting.
- 7. Close the terminal window. Restart the DocuSP software.

Reset the Xrite Spectrophotometer

Perform the following to reset the spectrophotometer:

Ensure that the calibration strip that matches the serial number on the spectrophotometer is available. If not, order a new one before continuing.

- 1. On the DocuSP controller background menu, open a terminal window.
- At the % prompt, type:cd /opt/XRXnps/XRXcalLib/bin
- 3. From the % prompt, type:
 - . /resetDTP

This will restore the spectrophotometer to the factory default settings.

After the reset is complete, follow the standard procedure to calibrate the spectrophotometer using the Xrite calibration strip.

5. Adobe Acrobat Reader

To install the Acrobat Reader, follow the instructions below. The Reader software is available on the customer documentation CDROM for Windows 95/98/NT, Macintosh, and Solaris.

For Windows and Macintosh

- Insert the documentation CDROM into the CDROM reader on your workstation.
- 2. Open to folder labeled ACROREAD.
- 3. Open the folder that is specific to your workstation, either Windows or Mac.
- 4. Windows: Double click on the .exe file. Follow the instructions on the screen to install the reader.
- 5. Macintosh: Copy (select and drag) the .bin file to the desktop. Double click on the file and follow the instructions on the screen to install the reader.

For Solaris

- Insert the documentation CDROM into the CDROM reader on the DocuSP controller.
- 2. In the background, select and open a terminal window.
- 3. Logon as the root or super user.
- Change directory to the CDROM, Acroread directory.Copy the .tar file to the /tmp directory.
- 5. Change to the /tmp directory:

cd /tmp

6. Untar the file:

tar -xf xxxxx.tar

Run the install script.

- The license agreement is displayed. Use the [Enter] key to scroll through the agreement, and type accept to accept the agreement.
- 8. The screen asks for the installation directory for the reader. Press the [Enter] key, and then type Y to create the Acrobat4 directory.

9. When the installation is complete, you can start the Acrobat Reader by typing:

/opt/Acrobat4/bin/acroread – iconic

12. The Adobe Acrobat Reader is started and placed as an icon on the desktop. Open the Reader, and select [File], [Open]. Enter the path to the customer documentation CDROM (/cdrom/65docs) to open one of the PDF files on the documentation CDROM.

NOTE: Steps 11 and 12 will have to be performed every time the system is shutdown and restarted unless a path is set up to the Adobe Acrobat Reader executable.

NOTE: If an icon does not appear, refer to the next procedure.

In order to launch the Adobe Acrobat Reader from the CDE console, located in the bottom center of the screen, perform the following steps:

- Open the File Manager.
- 2. Change to the /opt/Acrobat/bin folder.
- 3. Open the folders pop up menu by selecting the up arrow above the file drawer icon on the CDE console.
- 4. Use the left mouse button to select and drag the acroread file from the File Manager window to the Install Icon on the Folders pop up menu. This will install an icon that can be selected to launch Acrobat Reader.

When the Acrobat Reader icon is selected, a window titled Action:Run opens. Select [OK] and a run window opens, then Acrobat Reader opens. Minimize the Run window if desired; closing the Run window closes the Acrobat Reader.